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The Brown Memorial Library is a stone structure with a slate roof
reflecting the solidity and asymmetry of the work of H. H. Richaydson. It
is one story in height abovea partially raised basement topped with a fairly
steep hipped roof. The plan is basically rectangular in shape with a small
rectangular projection on the rear and a slight bay projection on one side.
The most emphatic deviation from a regular plan is the large five-bay
projection on the right .front. There is one principal entrance located on
the front and a minor one to the rear. A tall brick chimney rises from the
back of the structure opposite the front projection. The exterior walls
are of stone construction, built of roughly shaped pink granite from Conway,
N. H., laid in irregular coursing. The building is trimmed with red sand-
stone from Longmeadow, Mass., a source favored by Richardson, The gray slate
for the roof is a local product and was quarried nearby on the banks of the
Sebasticook River. There is a slight dentiled cornice; and a belt course of
sandstone runs around the entire building, forming the sills of the principal
windows.

The principal facade is asymmetrical with the arched entrance porch
in the approximate center. To the left of the entrance are two rectangular
windows placed close together, trimmed with sandstone which divides them into
a long vertical bottom section and a smaller, more horizontal top panel. They
are sash hung in the lower division with two large panes in each sash. The
top section is divided into an ornamental pattern with a hexagonal motif. The
form of these windows reflects that of all the other principal windows. At
the right hand side of the entrance is a large five-bay projection trimmed
in sandstone and capped with a semi~detached conical voof. The arched entryway
is approached by a broad flight of four smooth granite steps leading to an
ample platform. The platform and stairs are bounded on one side by the
projection and on the other by stone walls capped with sandstone to the line
of the belt course. Above the entry is a dormer, the base of which contains
a panel with the inscription "Brown Memorial Library" and carved rosettes.
Above this panel are two sash hung windows whose upper portions are also
patterned with hexagons. They are trimmed with sandstone and have rather large
lintels, above which rises a steep triangular pediment topped with a ball
finial.

The double doorway, which features a glass panel in each, is topped
by a colored glass transom. It is recessed into the building with the framing
archway flush with exterior masonry. This small porch, thus created, is floored
with a marble mosaic pattern. The semi-circular arch rests on vertical
members but the treatment of the whole is continuous. The stones are cut and
molded and features a band of carved foliage ornamentation. The whole is very
spare yet elegant.

The rear elevation is plainer and is broken by a slight rectangular
projection over which the downward pitch of the roof continues, making its
(See Continuation Sheet)
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height somewhat smaller. It is pierced with three narrow windows grouped over
a wooden entryway that appears to have been built over a sloping cellar en-
trance.

i The right side elevation features a three bay projection and a
\ small square window leaded with a pattern of hexagons and circles to its
right. The opposite wall is entirely symmetrical, containing a triple

window arrangement.

Beyond the main entrance is a vestibule which opens into an
entrance hall. To the rear is the former librarian's room, now the children's
reading room, off of which is located a fireproof brick wvault in which the
town archives are kept. To the left of the entrance hall is a stack room
which contains space for 5,000 volum?ﬁé. To the right is the largest room
in the building, the reading room. t is well lighted by the massive bay
at its front and from the smaller bay and window to one side. At the rear
is a large fireplace flanked with built-in seats. The room is finished
with a high wainscot and the ceiling is of pine patterned with trusses and
panels. The interior plan,like the exterior, exhibits Steven's faithfulness
to Richardsonian principals, being designed with a logical, functional
simplicity.
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Built in 1899-1900,the Brown Memorial Library is an unusuallylate
example of the RomangSQUe Revival architecture first made popular by
Henry Hobson Richardson two decades earlier. It is one of several small
Richardsonian-type libraries in the vicinity including the Lawrence Public
in Fairfield (Nat. Register Dec. 31, 1974) and the Lithgow in Augusta.
But unlike these contemporary structures the Brown Memorial is a purer example
of the Richardsonian ideal with an exterior exhibiting warm hues and con-
trasting colors in stone walls and trim, as opposed to the almost monochromatic
use of granite and slate in these other examples. The Clinton Library, though
symmetry is implied, is basically an asymmetrical composition, truer to
Richardson's buildings of the same type than either the Lithgow or Lawrence
Libraries,which reflect contemporary Beaux Arts symmetry clothed in a
Richardson-derived exterior. The Clinton Library is the most exemplary structure
of its kind in Maine and is an unusually large and elegant library for a small,
rural community. ' -

The architect of the Brown Memorial was John Calvin Stevens of Portland
(1855-1940), the most noted Maine architect of the late 19th and early 20th
centuries, a man of some national status, and Fellow of the American Institute
of Architects. Steven's work was deeply influenced by Richardson and his
innovations as well as the Shingle Style and of course the Romanesque Revival,
both of which stressed open unified textural effects on the exterior and
freely planned open interiors. The Clinton Library is one of several libraries
Stevens designed for smaller Maine communities, including Houlton and Rumford.
But it is his most faithful derivation of the Richardsonian model actually
built. 1Its late date may be attributable to the fact that although Stevens had
prepared several pure Richardson studies earlier in his career he had to wait
until fame and a suitable climate of taste rendered acceptance and construction
possible in Maine.

The Brown Memorial Library was a gift to the people of Clinton by William W.
Broﬁg of Portland, a native of the town. Brown purchased the building lot and
provided funds for the actual construction plus $5,000 as an endowment.

Much of the library's collection of books, furnishings and pictures was also the
gift of Brown including his large portrait by Vinton that hangs in the reading
room. In 1902, the library was the beneficiary of a gift by Orrin Learned con-
sisting of 100 volumnés of the offical records of the Union and Confederate Armies.

Previous to the construction of this building,Clinton had no public library.
(see continuation sheet)
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Ground for he structure was broken on August 29, 1899, by Mr. Brown and
the cornerstone was laid on September 25 of the same year amid elaborate
ceremonies. A copper box was sealed inside the stone containing materials
of the history of Clinton and various fraternal and religious organizatioms,
including a copy of the town's Act of Incorporation signed by Samuel Adams. Also
included were current U. S. coins, copies of the Clinton Advertiser and business
cards of all merchants and concerns of the town. The library was opened to the
public on July 21, 1900, and dedication ceremonies took place at the town hall
on August 15th. At the dedication the library and its contents were formally
presented by Mr. Brown to the citizens of Clinton. In his speech he detailed
his reasons for making this gift as a memorial to his family and parents and
concluded with the wish that '"generations may come and go, but I trust the good
to be derived from this gift may go on forever."

The late 19th and early 20th centuries was a great age of philanthropy in
the United States , a time when many communities, large and small, were the
beneficiaries of cultural bequests, not the least of which were libraries. Clinton
is no exception and its library is a reflection of the manner in which so many
self-made individuals returned to their roots with the idea of creating not only
memorials to themselves but, perhaps the means to endow and enlighten those to

come.
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